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ANNUAL HISTORY DAY ESSAY CONTEST 2009

“TROLLEY DAYS:
A history of trolleys in the Town of Babylon”

RESEARCH PACKET

- photographs, newspaper and magazine articles, book excerpts
and general information about the history of trolley lines that
operated in the Town of Babylon.

Information packet compiled by the Town of Babylon, Office of Historic Services, for the 2009 History Day Essay Contest,
“Trolley Days: A history of trolleys in the Town of Babylon.” Page 1



ADDITIONAL SOURCES OF INFORMATION

PRESENTATIONS

% On Saturday, March 28, 2009, 10:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m., at Babylon Town Hall, 200 E. Sunrise lighway,
Lindenhurst, the Town of Babylon Histortan, Thomas B. Smith, will host an eptiena/ information
session and presentation on trolley history, after which students may ask questions about trolleys in the
‘Town of Babylon. The information presented by the Town Histordan will be based on the material
provided in this packer. .

BOOKS (available at many local libraries)

% Amityville, written by the Amityville Historical Socicty, published by Arcadia Publishing, 2006.

< DBabylon By the Sea, written by Anne Frances Pulling, published by Arcadia Publishing, 1999.

% The Cross-Island Line: the stoty of the Huntington Railroad, written by Vincent F. Seyfried, 1976.

% Lost Trolleys of Queens and [.ong Island, wrtten by Stephen I.. Meyers, published by Arcadia
Publishing, 2006.

HISTORICAL SOCIETIES

% Amityville Historical Society: 528-1486

< Friends of the Deer Park Archives: Contact the Office of Historic Services for more information,
¢ Lindenhurst Historical Society: 226-1254

% Village of Babylon Historical & Pres. Society: 669-1756

LOCAL LIBRARIES

* Amityville Public Library: 264-0567

¢ Babylon Public Library: 669-1624

% Copiague Memorial Public Library: 691-1111

% Deer Park Public Library: 586-3000

% Lindenhurst Memoria! Public Library: 957-7755
% North Babylon Public Library: 662-4020

% West Babylon Public Library: 669-5445

$* Wyandanch Public Library: 643-4848

Information packer compiled by the Town of Babylon, Office of Historic Services, for the 2009 History Day Essay Contest,
“Trolley Days: A history of trolleys in the Towm of Babylon.” Page 2





























































Preceding the automobiles and
headed by Spedick’s Military Band
marched the undaunted members of the
ABmityville Fire Department. In line
were about thirty members of the
Amityville Hook and Ladder Co., who
won the banner presented for best
marching appearance, with their
apparatus, ten members of the
Pauntless Hose Co., who marched with a
dignity and evenness which challenged
the admiration of the assemblage and
brought dewn thunders of applause.
They did not have their apparatus
because a majority of the members of
the company voted at a special meeting
on Monday night not to permit the
company to parade. The ten marched in
the company uniform as individuals.
Because of the political strife which
was generally known to have been the
cause of the failure of the Dauntless
Hose Co. to parade as a company the
multitude was in entire sympathy with
the members of the company who had
spirit enough to parade.

The Amityville Junior Hook and
Ladder Co. won a handsome banner for
their. appearance in line and the
Amityville Cadet Corps also won a
similar banner.

The cars from Huntington,
bringing the Queens and her Maids of
Honor, were about an hour late in
arriving at Amityville. As fast as
they arrived they were stored on lower
Broadway, with the band and the
gueen’s fleat, immediately abreast of
the grand stand. Spedick’s band played
a few selections and Village President
Samuel P. Hildreth introduced
Assemblyman Alfred E. Smith of New
York, who is summering at Amityville.
Mr. Smith took the crowd well. He
spoke upon “Suburban Development” and
by describing with cleverness the
growth of the wvarious boroughs which
comprise the city of New York
indicated the possibilities which lay
before Bmityville. He cited the fact
that the Borough of Richmond, the only
borough with which the city of New
York has not yet been able to
establish adequate transportation

connactions, was the only borough
which could not raise enough by
taxation teo pay it operation expenses.

Assemblyman Smith’s brief
address was unanimously well receive,
and when he reminded the railroad that
with the privilegyes which had been
granted it had come great
responsibilities to the public his
remarks were greeted with great
applause.

At the conclusion of the address
the cars were sent to Farmingdale on
five minute headway. Owing to a
motorman stopping his car on the curve
in the middie of the steep grade on
the trestle there was a long delay in
getting away and the procession was
just one hour behind the schedule in
leaving Farmingdale.

At Farmingdale an address was
delivered by John J. Delaney, former
corporation counsel to the city of New
York. He spoke about fifteen minutes
concerning the auspiciousness of the
day’s event. He is fine type of
orator and the crowd listened closely
to him.

The party then ate a splendid
luncheon in the dining room of the
Nazareth Trade School. Father Girard
personally supervised the function and
no one left Farmingdale with any
appetite. Village President Adolph
Bausch, who has labored long and
faithfully in behalf of the
celebration, saw to it that the
Farmingdale end was held up well. 1In
the evening there was a vaudeville
performance at the trade schocl and a
dance in the fireman’s hall, with
plenty of fireworks on the side.
Clarence €. Doud, James T. Hoile, G.
P. Sullivan and John Merritt of the
local committee were on hand and gave
valued assistance.

When the procession finally
reached Huntington Village it arrived
just in time to fall in with the local
procession, but the time for boarding
the steamer "“Sagamore” was so short
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that that it was necessary to send the
cars right down to the dock to unload
and the visitors saw nothing of the
local programme.

The sail on the “Sagamore” to
the Chateau des Beaux Arts, escorted
by as pretty a procession of decorated
yachts as Huntington ever witnessed,
was very pleasant. It was well after
four ofclock before the diners were
all seated and it was getting toward
six o'clock before Toastmaster August
Heckscher introduced Henry F. Sammis,
the first speaker.

Mr. Sammis spoke briefly but
elogquently upon the topic “Urban and
Suburban New York.” Thomas M.
Osborne, of Auburn, N.Y., member of
the public service commission from
this district, made an address upon
the topic "The People and the
Railroad.” He spoke of a change of
sentiment toward public service
corporations which resulted in the
formation ¢of the commission.

Congressman W.W. Cocks who was
the last speaker, talked upon
“possibilities of Western Suffolk.”

The menu at the Chateau was good
and everyone appeared to be well
satisfied with the dinner and the
luxurious surroundings, with beautiful
Huntington Bay, dotted by dozens of
pretty craft in the offing.

Andre Bustancby, cne of the
Bustanoby Brothers who own the
Chateau, who was personally in charge
of the dinner, had probably the
busiest day of his life up to date,
but it would take more than that to
ruffle his eguanimity. He was here,
there and everywhere, and handled the
big function with all the taste and
delicacy that have made him famous as
a host. Particular mention is also
due to Frank P. Willets of Huntington,
who by his unending efforts to provide
comfort for the visitors, covered
himself with verbal laurels.

The Amityville programme
continued after the departure of the
cars for the north side. The baseball
game came off according to schedule,
but the local enthusiasts were much
disappointed by the defeat of the home
team. The Waukewan Canoce Club crossed
bats with the Patchogue A.C. and was
defeated by a score of 6 to 3. Five
hundred persons saw the game.

[Results from the day’s sporting
activities were detailed.] .. The
evening programme, which consisted
mainly of fireworks, with music by
Spedick’s Military band, was run off
cn the depot grounds. Edgar P. Foster
in appropriate speeches awarded the
prizes for the morning parade. The
fireworks presented a good display,
and fortunately, all serious accident
was avoided, although one woman'’s
skirt was slightly burned by an
erratic piece.

At all times during the day the
crowds exceeded in numbers those seen
at any of the familiar gatherings in
Long Island villages,
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There are, though, recollections from the old line's passen-
gers which reflect their experiences while riding the trolleys.

Amityville served as a terminus for not only the Huntington
line, aperated as a feeder line for the Long Island Rail Road,
but also for the South Side Traction Company’'s line to BRabylon.
The Habylon trolley operated from 1910 to 1920 over a route which
passed through Copiague and Lindenhurst.

A number of Amityville men found the trolley to be a means of
employment.

Benny Cirincione, George Herbert and Herbert Duryea, all
residepts of North Broadway were among those who served as motor-
men L]

Benny 1s remembered for entertaining the passengers with an
aria from an Italian opera while collecting the fares.

George Herbert, who freqguently guided the cars on their last
southbound run in the evening, would make an unscheduled stop to
pick up his bicycle before proceeding to the car barn on Sterling
M¥éce in Amityville. When the car had been secured for the night,

"he would ride his bicycle to his home on the corner of Smith Street,

Herbert Duryea's son, & printer's devil for Amityville's old
Long Island Sun newspaper, used the trolley weekly to deliver the
paper to be sold at Pihke's Store in Farmingdale.

The trolley also proved convenient for commuters, a number
of whom worked in the Fulton Truck Assembly Plant near the location
of the present Falrchild-Hiller Aircraft corporationin Bast Parming-~
dale, Amityville commuters, who had formerly depended upon the
stage, found the trolley to be a great improvement 1i1n trapsportation
for reaching the railroad station each day. At least one school
teacher in the Melville School depended upon the trolley for trans-
portation from her home in Amityville while another young lady in
South Farmingdale rode the trolley to reach her place of employment
in the Brodkin's Hat Factory on Amityville’s Park Avenue.

The trolley alsco provided a means for recreation and pleasure.
A popular summer outling for Amityville families Was a trip across
the island for a picnic in the Halesite Park and a refreshing swim
in the waters of the Long Island Sound. Others found the trolley
a convenient means for traveling to the Richmond Avenue dock to
board a ferry to the ocean beaches. Still others, in the days before
alr conditioning, rode the open summer cars to catch a cool breeze
on a hot apd humid summer day.

A story is told of a most faithful commuter, a springer spaniel
named Jack owned by Mr. and Mrs. Royal 7. Carman. The Carmans fre-
guently took the trolley line to the Richmond Avenue dock where they
boarded their boat for 2 sall across the bay to spend a weekend at
their Gilgo BHeach cottage. Jack, the springer spaniel dog, would
become restless before the conclusion of the weekend, make his way
home by swimming the bay and walking across the wetlapds to come
ashore at the Coles Avenue dock, site of Bill Ketcham's fish store.

75
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Maps of the Trolley Line operated by the South
Shore Traction Company, also known as the
Babylon Railroad Co., between the Villages of
Amityville and Babylon from 1910 to 1920.

The hand-drawn map, above, was copied from the
article “The South Shore Traction Company,” by Felix
E. Reifschuedier, Long Island Forum, December 1973,
pg 232-233. (A copy of Mr. Reifschneider’s article 1s
enclosed with this information packet.)

The map to the right is the approximate trolley route
which has been drawn over a modern-day street map.
(“Suffolk County Atlas,” by the Hagstrom Map Co,
Inc., 1998, pg. 22-23.)

Information packet compiled by the Town of Babylon, Office of Historic Services, for the 2010 History Day Essay Contest,
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According to an earlier ar-
ticle in the Forum Mr. Sam-
mis observed hig 75th birth-
day on May 8, 1893 and sold
his Fire Island property to

the State. The Hotel wasn't
opened that summer, which
aroused the ire of President
Austin Corbin of the Long
Island RR, who tried and may

have succeeded to deny ac-
cess to the railroad station
grounds to the horse cars.

At any rate, a new era be-
gan in 1898 when the road
seems to have passed out of
the hands of Babylon men,
when New York people took
over. The only Babylon men
still connected with the en-
terprise were Washington F.
Norton and William G. Ni-
choll, who became a surro-
gate of Suffolk County. The
new owners isswed $33,000
worth of bonda to replace the
old light iron rails with heav-
jer steel rails, rebuild the en-
tire roadbed and purchase
two stored steam cars or lo-
comotives, known then as
“Irinetic motors” althe more
familiarly as “fireless cook-
ers”. In the absence of a pho-
tograph we do net know
whether these engines pulled
the horse cars as trailers or
had accommodations for pas-
sengers on the same vehicle,

such as the cars on some linies
in South Brooklyn at that
time, altho the Erooklyn
“steam motors” had coal fired
boilers. This type of equip-
ment must not Le confused
with steam “dummies’ which
were quite different.

The stored Steam cars ran
only in summer and were no
more successful from the pro-
fit atandpoint than the horse
cars. After steam operation
for the summers of 1898 and
1399, and perhaps for a short
time in the beginning of the
summer of 1900, the road was
leased to William (De) Gar-
mo of Babylon, who started
up the old horse car service
on July 25, 19300 and contin-
ved to operate for some sum-
mers therenfter. By some
miracle Mr. De Garmo suc-
ceeded in remaining nearly
solvent and in one year re-
ported a profit of exactly one
dollar. While insignificant, it
did reverse the annual losses
of the previous three decades.

On October 9, 1906 the
Babylon RR was bought by
the Long Island Consolidated
Electrical Companies, a hold-
ing company owned 509 by
the Long Island RR and 50%
by the Interborough Rapid
Traneit Co., operator of sub-
way and elevated railroads in
New York City. It was an-
nounced that the car line
would be electrified, but the
project was delayed, as wag
that of the Cross-Island Trol-
ley, by the Panic of 1907,

When more normal eco-
nomic conditions returned,
the property was sold to the
South Shore Traction inter-
ests in 1909 who took it over
and electrified it. The South
Shore Traction, it may be re-
called, was the grandiose
scheme for building a trolley
line from 59th Street and 2nd
Avenue in Manhattan, across
the Queensborough Bridge,
thru Long lsland City, Ja-
maica, St. Albans and the

South Shore villages to
Broolthaven.

Only the line in Queens
County was subatantially

completed, plus two short
stretches in Suffolk County:
the Babylon line with its ex-
tension about to be described
and a short piece of track in
Sayville which was later tak-
en over by the Suffolk Trac-
tion, the latter also connected
with the South Shore project
in the beginning,

In addition to electrifying
the Babylon line, and equip-
ping it with some second-
hand single truck troileys, an
extension of six miles was
built thru Lindenhurst and
Copiague to Amityville,
where a shoxt stretch of
track in the center of town
was shared with the Hunting-
ton RR (Cross-Island Trol-
ley). For this extension sec-
ond-hand double truck cars
were brought in from N. Y.
City. The writer remembers
the carbarn, a rather crude
corrugated ivon building on
the south side of the LIRR in
West, Babylon. At that time it
would have been possible to
ride by trolley from Halesite
on Long Island Sound to the
Fire Island Dock on Great
South Bay, about a 24-mile
trip, in approximately two
hours.

The Babylon-Amityville op-
eration has been described in
the December, 1973, Forum.
It led a hand-to-mouth exiat-
ence for eleven years before
it shut down May 15, 1920,
outlasting the NY and North
Shore Traction by a few
weeks and ending almost a
half-century of street railway
service in Bahylon.
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BRIEF TIMELINE OF THE CROSS-ISLAND LINE

OPERATED BY THE HUNTINGTON RAILROAD BETWEEN HUNFINGTON AND AMITYVILLE

1890 (July 19) ~ T'he IMuntington Railroad company establishes a three mile long horse-
drawn trolley line between Huntington Village and Halesite on the harbor.

1898 (April) — The Long Island Railroad purchases the line and clectrifies it by June 17,

1908 - "T'he line is extended 18.5 miles south on a right of way, that is the approximate
location of the present Route 110. “The line travels through Melville and
I'armingdale to the dock in Amityville along the Great South Bay.
® ‘The lin¢ goes under the Long Island Railroad tracks at Huntington and
Farmingdale, and is elevated overt the tracks in Amityville.

e C(ar barns, used for storage of the trolley cars, are maintained in both Halesite
and Amityville. Power substations are located in the railroad stations at
Huntington and Farmingdale

1909 (August 25) — Service from Huntington to Amityville is commenced. The trolley line
maintains an hourly schedule. A one-way trip, from end to end, lasts 76 minutes.

¢ The rolling stock, also known as railroad cars, consists of six double truck, semi-
convertible cars and seven single truck cars that provide more frequent service to
the local railroad stations.

o ‘The farc is 30 cents, divided into six 5-cent zones, each about three miles long.
Zone boundaries are at (1) the terminal in Halesite, (2) Huntington Station, (3)
the DeForest I'arm at West Hills, (4) the Duryea Farm at Melville, (5)
Farmingdale Station, and (6) the terminal at Amityville.

e A spur track from Conklin Street to the Farmungdale Railroad Station is created
so trolleys can make connections with trains from Brooklyn and New York City.

1914 — Henry Ford produces the popular Model T automaobile, and more people begin
purchasing their own automobiles.

1917 — The United States joins World War I. Trolley riders are hit with rising costs and the
trolleys lose customers.

1919 (September 23) — The Cross-Island service to Amityville ends, primarily due to
increased use of the automobile. However, the original portion from Huntington to
Halesite is sold to the Huntington Traction Company, which continues operations.

1927 (August 15) — The Huntington Traction Company ceases operations completely.
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CARNIVAL A BIG SUCCESS -

Largest Crowd Amityville Ever Saw and all Hands Pleased

[Transcribed from the “Amityville Record,” August 27, 1909.)

It seems to be conceded that it
was the biggest day that Amityville
ever had. The long labors of the
committee were displaved in the
perfect smoothness with which the
entire ceremony went off, from
morning until night, and the large
crowds of visitors who flocked to
Amityville in numbers which exceeded
those of the county firemen’s
tournament were satisfied with what
Lhey got for their pains and mecney.

Wednesday broke bright and fair,
and except that the temperature was a
little warm, weather conditions were
ideal for the formal celebration of
the opening of the new cross island
trolley road which connects,
Amityville, Farmingdale, Huntington
and the intervening villages, and
makes it possible to travel with
ease, comfort and economy from the
shores of New England to the Atlantic
Ocean. The plan of holding a general
celebration, passing through all
three villages, and harmonizing with
local celebrations in each community,
was found to work perfectly, and from
the time when the automcbile parade
started at the foot of Ocean Ave. in
Amityville at eight o’clock in the
morning, until the last piece of
fireworks had gone up into the air in
any of the three villages, and tired
eyed but happy folks wended their
several ways homeward, there was not
a sericus flaw or sethkack.

The number of cars which were
run on short headway all day long was
a severe strain upon the power of the
new road. The road is not at present
equipped to run as many as ten or
twelve cars close together., At times
it was necessary for the cars to slow
up a bit. Considering the
irregularities of the schedule,
however, and bearing in mind that the

road had had practically no trying
out, it 1ls little short of wonderful
that the day passed off without a
serious mishap. Great credit is due
to the railroad men for this. They
were on the job from sunrise almost
until the next sunrise. F.M.
Hartenstien, manager of
transportation, was in charge, and
his urbanity was imperturbable. L.S.
Wells, in charge of the electrical
equipment, kept an alert eye in the
system all day, while Mr. Ludlam, who
has charge of the electrical
divisions of the Long Island
Railroad, wore himself out completely
in the day’s service.

The fun began at eight o‘clock
in the morning, when the automobile
parade started from the foot of Ocean
Ave. and proceeded to Main St.,
headed by Grand Marshall Fred B.
Dalzell in the 40~horse power Buick
of his brother, E,T. Dalzell, who
made a midnight start from Brooklyn
to be on the scene. The procession
traversed Main St. to Bay View Ave.
te Aven Place, to Broadway, to Main
S5t., to Park Avenue, to Brecadway, to
Albany Ave,, to Dixon Ave., to
Broadway and past the reviewing
stand, after which it diskanded. The
ornamentation of the cars was
extremely pretty. The first prize
for decorations was won by J. Henry
Ruwe, whose car was trimmed with a
profusion of hydrangea and the second
prize by E.E. Haff, whose machine was
a complete bower of pink artificial
roses. There was libkeral applause
for each car as it drew up in front
of the grand stand for review by the
judges, Davide Minaldi, Eugene
Valsor, Rufus J. Ireland, J.F.
Mincher, and C.M. Palmer. The first
prize was a mammoth bronze statue,
mounted on a stone base. The second
prize was a silver loving cup. The

Information packet compiled by the Town of Babylon, Office of Historic Services, for the 2010 History Day Essay Contest,

“Trolley Days: A History of Trolleys in the Town of Babylon.”

21

Pape



decorations on Frank W. Dcnnelly’s
car, which was ornamented wilh golden
rod and sunflowers, are deserving of
especial menticn.

Preceding the automobiles and
headed by Spedick’s Military Band
marched the undaunted members of the
Amityville Fire Departiment. In line
were about thirty members of the
Amityville Hook and Ladder Co., who
won the banner presented for best
marching appearance, with their
apparatus, ten members of the
Dauntless Hose Co., who marched with
a dignity and evenness which
challenged the admiration of the
assemblage and brought down thunders
of applause. They did not have their
apparatus because a majority of the
members of the company voted at a
special meeting on Monday night not
to permit the company to parade. The
ten marched in the company uniform as
individuals. Because of the
political strife which was generally
known to have been the cause of the
failure of the Dauntless Hose Co. to
parade as a company the multitude was
in entire sympathy with the members
of the company who had spirit enough
to parade.

The Amityville Junior Hook and
Ladder Co. won a handsome banner for
their appearance in line and the
Amityville Cadet Corps also won a
similar banner.

The cars from Huntington,
bringing the Queens and her Maids of
Honor, were about an hour late in
arriving at Amityville. As fast as
they arrived they were stored on
lower Broadway, with the band and the
queen’s float, immediately abreast of
the grand stand. Spedick’s band
played a few selections and Village
President Samuel P. Hildreth
introduced Assemblyman Alfred E.
sSmith of New York, who is summering
at Amityville. Mr. Smith took the
crowd well. He spoke upon “Suburban
Development” and by describing with

cleverness the growth of the various
boroughs which comprise the city of
New York indicated the possibilities
which lay befere Amityville. He
cited the fact that the Borough of
Richmond, the only borough with which
the city of New York has not yel been
able to establish adequate
transportation connections, was the
conly borough which could not raise
enough by taxation to pay it
operation expenses.

Assemblyman Smith’s brief
address was unanimously well receive,
and when he reminded the railroad
that with the privileges which had
been granted it had come great
responsibilities to the public his
remarks were greeted with great
applause,

At the conclusion of the address
the cars were sent to Farmingdale on
five minute headway. Owing to a
motorman stopping his car on the
curve in the middle of the steep
grade on the trestle there was a long
delay in getting away and the
procession was just one hour behind
the schedule in leaving Farmingdale.

At Farmingdale an address was
delivered by John J., Delaney, former
corporation counsel to the city of
New York. He spoke about fifteen
minutes concerning the auspiciocusness
of the day’'s event. He is fine type
of orator and the crowd listened
closely to him.

The party then ate a splendid
luncheon in the dining room of the
Nazareth Trade School. Father Girard
personally supervised the function
and no cone left Farmingdale with any
appetite. Village President Adolph
Bausch, who has labored long and
faithfully in behalf of the
celebration, saw to it that the
Farmingdale end was held up well. 1In
the evening there was a vaudeville
performance at the trade school and a
dance in the fireman’s hall, with
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plenty of fireworks on the side.
Clarence C. Doud, James ''. Hoile, G.
P. Sullivan and John Mervitt of the
local committee were on hand and gave
valued assistance.

When the procession finally
reached Huntington Village it arrived
just in time to fall im with the
local procession, but the time for
boarding the steamer “Sagamore” was
5o shert that that it was necessary
to send the cars right down to the
dock to unload and the visitors saw
nothing of the local programme.

The sail on the “Sagamore” to
the Chateau des Beaux Arts, escorted
by as pretty a procession of
decorated yachts as Huntington ever
witnessed, was very pleasant. It was
well after four o’clock before the
diners were all seated and it was
getting toward six ofclock before
Toastmaster August Heckscher
introduced Henry F. Sammis, the first
speaker,

Mr. Sammis spoke briefly but
eloquently upon the topic “Urban and
Suburban New York.” Thomas M.
Osbhorne, of Auburn, N.Y., member of
the public service commission from
this district, made an address upon
the topic “The People and the
Railroad.” He spoke of a change of
sentiment toward public service
corporations which resulted in the
formation of the commission,.

Congressman W.W. Cocks who was
the last speaker, talk upon
“Possibilities of Western Suffolk.”

The menu at the Chateau was goocd
and everyone appeared tc be well
satisfied with the dinner and the
luxurious surroundings, with
beautiful Huntington Bay, dotted by
dozens of pretty craft in the offing.

Andre Bustanoby, one of the
Bustanoby Brothers who own the
Chateau, who was personally in charge
of the dinner, had probably the
busiest day of his life up to date,
but it would take more than that to
ruffle his equanimity. He was here,
there and everywhere, and handled the
big function with all the taste and
delicacy that have made him famous as
a host. Particular mention is also
due to Frank P, Willets of
Huntington, who by his unending
efforts to provide comfort for the
visitors, covered himself with verbal
laurels.

The Amityville programme
continued after the departure of the
cars for the north side. The
baseball game came off according to
schedule, but the local enthusiasts
were much disappointed by the defeat
of the home team. The Waukewan Canoe
Club crossed bats with the Patchogue
A.C. and was defeated by a score of 6
to 3. Five hundred persons saw the
game.

[Results from the day’s sporting
activities were detailed.]

. The evening programme, which
consisted mainly of fireworks, with
music by Spedick’s Military band, was
run off on the depot grounds. Edgar
P. Foster in appropriate speeches
awarded the prizes for the morning
parade. The fireworks presented a
good display, and fortunately, all
serious accident was avoided,
although one woman’s skirt was
slightly burned by an erratic piece.

At all times during the day the
crowds exceeded in numbers those seen
at any of the familiar gatherings in
Long Island villages.
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There are, thouyh, recollzctions from the old line's passen-—
gers which reflect their cxporicnces while riding the trolleys,

Amityville served as a terminus for not only the Huntinygton
line, oprrated as a feeder line fFor the Long Island Rail Road,
but also for the Scouth Side Praction Company's line to Dabylon.
The Babylon trolley operated from 1910 to 1920 over a coute which
passed through Copliague and Lindenhurst.

A number of Amityville men found the trolley to be a means of
employment.

Benny Cirincione, George {lerbert and Herbert Duryea, all
residents of North Broadway were among those who served as motor-
men.

Benny is remembered for entertaining the passengers with an
aria from an Italian opera while collecting £he Fares.

George Herbert, who freguently guided the cvars on their last
southbound run in the evening, would make an unscheduled stop to
pick up his bicycle before proceediny to the car barm on Sterling
Place In Amityville. When the car had been secured four the night,
he would ride his bicycle to his home on the courpner of Smith Street,

Herbert Duryea's sopn, a prianter's devil for Amityville's old
Long Island Sun newspaper, used the trolley weekly to deliver the
paper to be sold at Pike's Store in rarmingdale.

The *trolley also proved convenient for commuters, a4 number
of whom worked in the Fultopn Truck Assembly Plant near the location
of the present Fairchild-Hiller Aircraft corporationin East Farming-
dale., Amityville commuters, who had formerly depended upon the
stage, found the trolley to Dbe a great improvement 1n transportation
for reaching the railroad station each day. At least one school
teacher in the Melville School depended upon the trolley for trans-
portation from her home in Amityville while ancther Young lady in
South FParmingdale rode the trolley to reach her place of employment
in the Brodkin's Hat Factory on Amityville's Park Avenue.

The trolley also provided a means for recrcation and pleasure,
A popular summer outing for Amityville families Was a trip across
the island for a plicnic in the Halesite Park and a refreshing swim
in the waters of the Long Island Sound. Others found the trolley
a convenient medans for traveling to the Richmond Avenue dock to

board a ferry to the ocean beaches. Still others, in the days before

air conditioning, rode the open summer cars to catch a cool breecze
on a hot apd humid summer day.

A story is told of a most faithful commuter, a springer spaniel
named Jack owned by NMr, and ¥rs. Royal T. Carman. The Carmans fre-
gquently tock the trolley line to the Richmond Avenue dock where they
boarded their beocat for a sail across the bay to spend a weekend at
their Gilgo Beach cottage. Jack, the springer spaniel dog, would
become restless before the conclusion of the weekend, make his way
home by swimming the bay and walking across the wetlands to come

ashore at the Coles Avenue dock, site of Rill Ketcham'’s fish store.
75
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from Amityville after 6 p.m.
(a trdp at about 9:30 p.m.)
and only one through trp
from Huntington station after
7 pam. (about 11 pm.) and
this did not run all the way to
the center of Amityville. From
this it is safe to conclude that
cross-island traffic had virtual-
ly disappeared.

The reason for the irregu-
lar interval between cars was
that the schedule was ar-
ranged to provide connections
with. the trains at Farmingdale
and Amityville, and extra tri
were made between Amityville
station and the dock, and some
between Amityville and Far-
mingdale. It is safe to con-
clude that most of the riding
was by commuters, to and
from the LIRR traine. Riding
continued to be heavy between
Huntington station and tha
village, hut this was carried
on the local cars between those
points, not on the Cross-island
cars.

Faced with rising costs, the
Railroad applied for a Tc fare,
but the villages refused to
agree, with typical short-sight-
edness, Deciding to take the
bull by the homs, the Rail-
road, after making the last
scheduled trips on September
23, 1919, detoured the six
doubls truck cars to its own
tracks at Amityville and
bauled them away to be re-
turned to the QOcean Electrie
at Far Rockaway. This effec-
tively ended the Cross-island
trolley.

It is emsy to second-guess
the situation at this late date.
Perhaps a fare increase could
have obteined in time.
Service could have been made
more attmctive and more eco-
nomical with modern one-man
cars. The men agsigned by the
LIRR to operate itz irolley
h;]ief were not tx;otﬁd for Elam
skill or ingemuity. But perhaps
abandonlgngent could have been
postponed for but a few more
years, and with the disappear-
ance of the cross-island traffic,
the principal function of the
Line had vanished.

The nexi year the tracks
were torn up and the wires
taken down, starting at the
Amityville end and working

“The Cross-Island Trolley,” by Felix F.
Reifschneider, was published in the Long Island
Forum magazine, April 1969, pages 64-67.

northward, The writer remem-
bers riding his bicycle to
Farmingdale and watching the
demolition crew slowly doing
its work between Farmingdale
and Huntington. In the mean-
while, desperate efforts were
being made to save the line
from Melville north. A new
company was formed, the
Huntington Traction Co., with
William A. Dempsey of Brook-
lyn as President.

The demolition crew of the
Long Island RR was busy
tearing up track northward at
the same time that the new
company was trying to buy
the remaining track from the
Railroad. Demolition had got-
ten as far as Siding 7, about
two miles south of Huntington
gtation, when the deal was
made. Thus the original goal
of operating as far as Melville
was lost before the new com-
pany got started. '

The Traction Co. operated
the line from Huntington sta-
tion to Halesite on a frequent
schedule as before, with the
President’s brother, Edward
T. Dempsey as Manager at
Huntington. It is not known
whether there was an inter-
ruption in this service during
the transition period. One car
wag operated from the station
south about two miles to Sid-
ing 7, but so few pessengers

TROLLEY SCHEDULE ADS

Mr. Reifschneider hes a 1918
Cross Istand Trolley Schednle
which carMed advertiserments
around its border. The advertisers
probably pald for the printing of
the timetable. The slx ads read:

Louis Cohn, Ladies and Gent's
Tailor, Broadway, Amityville.

W. Powell, Day and MNight Taxi-
cab Service, Broadway, Amityville.

F. B. Powell & Son, Hardware
and Paints, On Broadway, 30 Sec-
onds from Trolley, Amityville.

The Bank of Farmingdale, The
Brick bank on the Trelley corner.

Frank W. Smith, Dry Goods,
Amityville,

Best Soda in Town at Heck'’s
Drug Store, Huntingion Station,
L. I

were carried at the southern

-end of the line that service

was soon cut back to the Jeri-
cho Turnpike, South Hunting-
ton. This car carried only
sbout 100 passengers a dey at
a 10c fare, The $10 daily reve-
nue being insufficient to pay
expenses, the car was with-
drawn about 1924,

The seme seven single truck
cars that started the service
in 1898 were continued in op-
eration. No attempt was made
to modernize. It is not surpris-
ing that all service on
August 15, 1927.
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[ Community News | TRANSPORTATION - NYS -
LONG ISLAND

TURN OF THE CENTURY TROLLEY RIDE - Auyust
17. $5.00 per person - Trolley leaves from Meadow Croft 10
am.-11:30 am. - | pm. - 2:30 p.m. - 4 p.m. Parking at St
Ann's South Parking Lot. Send stamped, self addressed
envelope with check to Bayport Heritage, PO. Box 2. Biue

Point. Indicate choice of time.
Re'.flriés::ﬁc b-lan'alion Provided Souvenir Booklet & k LOCE! Aﬂ&,&]ﬁ%{ﬁ{ﬁé}LLEGﬂOﬂ

Suﬁﬁam Tnaction Rides Ugain!

A Reenactment of the original Suffolk Traction Street
Car Route Through Patchogue, Blue Point, Bayport,
and Sayville 1911-1919

Sponsored by Bayport Heritage Association

With Assistance from:

Hans Henke, Patchogue Constance Currie and
Gene Horton, Blue Point Chuck Webber, Sayville
Carole Pichney, Bayport




SDUFFoLK TRACTION
1911 - 1919
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KENSINGTON HOTEL: Bencovated in
1895 from the old Bedell Tavern;
Scene of German espicnage in
World War I. Torn down in 1954.
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2

(RBER's DEPARIMENT STORE: North side of
Main St. just east of the Kensington Hotel.
Mr. Gerber, originally a peddler, was the
first Jewish merchant in Sayville.

A DERARTUMENT STORE AT SAvviLLE, L L

At 890~
"R zans ?M :
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3

SOLDIERS MONUMENT at Sayvilie: The EAGLE was
given to Elward Smith (c. 1919) by the famous
Pulitzer family. It had been over the doorway
of the first NEW YORK WORLD newspaper building
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SULDIEW'S MONUMENT AT SAYVILLE, L. L
ms

Old ROBINSON HOUSE; originally in Bayport:
Dr. Robinson was a well-loved Sayvillian.
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Y

Pray Coure Howse, Soytille, [, {. ' v D 5

Built in 1912; Designed by I.H.
Green. It originally held the
village 'lock-up.’

., 6

Built c. 1900; Designed by I.H.
Green for the fire department and
1961.

7

One of the many inns frequented by
guests. Burned in 1926.
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The owner of this home, Mr. Asher,
sued the trolley campany for $12,000
in damages for rumning the trolley in
front of his home. He was eventually
awarded $200.

This LITTLE OLD TEA HOUSE stood
an the northwest corner of Middle
Foad and Oakwoed Ave, where the
trolley made its turn toward
Sayville.

The BAYPORT BARREL, FACTORY was
established in 1904, Barrels for
shipping oysters were made here.
100,000 barrels a season were turned
out here. By 1938, this structure
was gone.
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LIRR STATION at BAYPORT: Built in
1303 on land donated by Mrs. Edward
Gillette. Station cost $8,000.
Demolished in the early 1960's.

5

|
SUFFOLR TRACTICN Car # 1 is shown
approaching the Bayport LIRR
station.

—

William B. Arthur of Blue Point
had his house moved to Bayport,
where Saltbox Realty is today.
He operated a general store here
and was Bayport's first station-
master and postmaster.
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SNEDECCR & SQUIRES GRAIN AND FEED

STORE: Built in 1904 north of the LIRR
tracks east of Bayport Ave. The feed
business was run as an extension of their
general store on Middle Road.

7

In June, 1907, an injunction was
issued against Suffolk Traction Co.
which began laying tracks in fromt
of the Purdy estate. All work was
stopped leaving Middle Road almost
impassable. This caused mxch anger
among the citizens of Bayport.

The Purdy estate was cut in half
and now is located at #78 and #84

Connectquot Ave. in Bayport.
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Downtown BLUE POINT, c. 1915; Notice the doors of the Blue Point Fire
Department on the right & the tracks of SUFFOLK TRACTICHN on the left.
Site of Firehouse Deli today.

2

LIRR depot in Blue Foint;
east side of Blue Foint Ave.
opposite liquor store. The
_ V> - station was built in 1900 &
RN a-‘;lﬂ'%“’ﬁ' 2 P dismantled in 1951,
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TROUBLE AT THE BELUE POINT AVE.
TRESTLE, c. 1914. Suffolk Traction
streetcar appears stuck.

4

Another flood at the

LIRR underpass on Blue
Point Ave.
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5

Blue Point Inn; site of North
Fork Bank today; Inn was built
in 1888; burmed down in 1963.

6

YE OLE ANCHORAGE INN; northwest
comer of Montauk Hwy. & Kennedy
Ave., Blue Point.

One of the 'pharos' (lighthouses)
still stands on the property
today.

W AwcHoRAGK Tvw & 1N 7

Another view of YE OLE
ANCHORAGE INN, c. 1915.
Hame of THE SHPINX (now
in Bayport.)

ANCHORAGE INN burned down
in 1928.
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West Lake; trachk on north side;
Actor Elmer Grandin's house on lake.

' leo's Inn; once a private home; became
an inn around 1910.

First spikes for tracks driven by
Mr. Breckenridge, 1907, in front of the
Lace Mill,

Trolley shed stood opposite mill; long
gone.
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Shand's store on Havens Ave.
Building was old Haven's store;

Built c. 1850;
Sold to shand, 1914.

West Main St., 1907; Buildings
fram L-R: Mueller's White House
Hotel, Masonic Temple built 1907,
burnt 1974; small house ?;

Large brick building = Syndicate
Building (now Wedge Wood) , built
1898; fire burnt upper story, 1967.
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6

Trolley on Main St., 1912,




Thkkwrkhkkhkhhkhkhkhkhhkhkhkwwdkdrdkirkddkiridrgtk PATCHOGUE e o vl Y v vie i e 3 e 3 o o e o ol o iy ol o i e i ol e o ol o o v ol ol o oy

7

The MILL'S BUILDING; gabled center

'§ part built in 1876, left and right
. sections built in 1898;

Y Home of HAMMOND-MILL's DEPARTMENT

STORE:

I Burned down in 1956.

Wi LT

ﬂ,s:uo:\, Patchogue, L1 . 8

LR

"'.": : Me, PATCHOGUE RAILROAD STATIGN; In 1869

: the railroad reached Patchogue; end
I : . of line until 1872, This picture

1905;

. 1869 = 4 trains per day each way:
90 minutes to NYC.

P 1904 = 14 trains each way.

Joseph Bailey residence; son of Ed
Bailey, founder of lumbermill
business. Elaborate wood interior;
everything made in Bailey's mill.
Now convent home.
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Swezey's & the Four Corners, c¢. 1907

20

Zangregational Church on N. Ccean and
cormer of Lakewood St.; built in 1855;
Served until 18395; then became part of
the Lyceum.

Jire House on Lake St, built J1904-1905.
Demplished in 1971













NTRODUCTION

Newoomers to a village, as well as the natives and “old
timern,” usually seek with sagerness, reminiscences of thatr
home surroundings. To the student or reader of history, these
tales of times past, convey, like old plotures, the delineation of
incldents perhapa forgotten, and unknowna to the present genera-
tion. It is for the purpose of stimuiating an interest in our vil-
lage past and present, that this book is brought before the publie.

We are fortunate in having as a neighbor among us, an octo-
generian, endowed not only with a memory, vivid with early in-
cldents, and pictures of our village, but gifted with the power
to portray the usages and characteristics of old Bahylon folks,
and to depiot the appearance and location of old bulldings of
sixty years ago. Perhaps, some part our gaod fortune in having
our friend and author still among our number, is dus to his good
wife. For Lf, ke the writer, you, our reader, had grown up with
the Flaeld famlily and had been brought into contact with the kind
and loving wife and mothér, and heard every day for many
years, from some of her children, “No, we had better not do that,
Mother would not like it,” you would have learned a mother's
influence, always given in the kindest aud sweetest way. With
such a Ilfe-companion, who cannot have more admiration for our
author and his well-rounded life? We wish our author many
more years of usefulness, and may his reminiscences go down
to posterity as a mopument to one who has loved Babylon and
its people.

It has boen thought fitting to Includs in this book a brief
blography of our author by his friend, James B. Cooper, and a
skotch of the history of our villuge—merely an outline of its
progresa—by the writer, to whom Babylon will always be endear-
by many tender associations.

J W. B
September 1, 1911




Reminiscences of Babylon. 79

W. Larned, first assistant, and Gustav Fishel, second assistant engi-
neer of the fire department.

In 1895 D. Rickets, Jr., was elected president, Edward Daily,
Joshna Taylor and Treadwell B. Kellum, Trustees and James B. Coop-
er, Jr., was appointed Clerk.

December 10, 1895, petition of Sumpawams Hose Company to
form a company was granted.

January 21, 1896, a special slection to determine whether Babylon
Village should remain incorporated. The election resulted in & ma-
jority of votes being cast in favor of sustaining the government. In
1896 Andrew J. Weeks was elected trustee in place of Joshua Taylor
and William G. Nieoll was appointed Clerk. October 15, 1896, a map
of the village was ordered to be made by Oscar Darling for the sum of
$600.

March 22, 1897, the offer of the Babylon Woman’s Exchange for
a drinking fountain to be erected on Fire Island avenue and Main
strect was accepted. In 1898, H. Van Weelden was elected president,
Edward Daily and Henry Qakley, trustees and Eugene Fishel was ap-
pointed Clerk. In 1899 the same officeys were re-elected.

In 1900, Edward Daily was elected president, Charles 8. Hendrick-
son and Henry Oakley, trustees, and Eugene Fishel was appointed
Clerk. F. 8. Thorpe was elected chief of the fire department. In 1901
and 1902 the same officers were elected and Eugene Fisbel remained
Clerk. In 1903, Treadwell B. Kellum was elected president, Henry
Oskley and Charles 8. Hendrickson, trustees, Eugene Fishel was ap-
pointed Clerk. In 1904, B. B. Wood was elected president, Henry
Osakley and John Arink, trustees, LeRoy M. Young was appointed
Clerk. In 1905 and 1906 the officers remained the same, but on Feb-
1uary 13, 1906, the resignation of Henry Qakley was accepted and
Elmer W. Howell was appointed to fill the vacancy. In 1907 B. B.
‘Wood was elected president and John H. Arink and Elmer W. Howell,
trustees, LeRoy M. Young was appointed Clerk. In 1908 Chester Q.
Keotcham was elected President, Carll Jackson, James C. Burns, trus-
tees, and Jamea B, Cooper was appointed Clerk. In 1909 and 1910 the
officers were the same. In 1911 E. 8. Alley was elected president and
David C. Ricketts, who with Carll Jackson formed the Board, and
James B. Cooper waa appointed Clerk.

The village has made rapid improvements under incorporation and
now has many advantages over other villages. It is an exprees station,
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not without its misfortunes. The Huntington Railroad could not
compete with the increased use of personal automobiles and
the rising costs resulting from the United States' entry into World
War |. On September 23, 1919, the Cross- Island service to
Amityville ended. However, the original trolley line between
Huntington and Halesite, sold to the Huntington Traction
Company, continued until 1927.

100th Anniversary of the Trolley
Lines

These two trolley lines are a fascinating part of Babylon Town
history. To commemorate the upcoming 100th Anniversaries of
the Cross-island Line {August 25, 1908) and the Babylon
Railroad (June 11, 1910), the Town of Babylon Historic
Preservation Commission and the Office of Historic Services
chose the theme "Trolley Days: A History of Trolleys in the Town
of Babyion," for its Annual History Essay Contest.

The History Essay Contest has been held since 1289; howevar,
this year's contest gamered the highest participation in its
history. Over 1,800 4th grade students from 17 elementary
schools throughout the Town of Babylon wrote essays about
local trolley history. A selection of winning student essays will be
posted on the Town of Babylon website (www.
townofbabylon.com).

Winning students, whose essays were selected by their
classroom teachers, received award cerificates from Town
Supervisor Steve Beillone, Town Clerk Carol Quirk, and the
Historic Preservation Commission, at an awards ceremony held
at Babylon Town Hall on May 30, 2009. Councilwoman
Jacqueline A. Gordon and Councilman Tony Martinez were also
present at the awards ceremony.

Two other award ceremonies were also held. On April 24, 2009,
students at the Park Avenue Memorial Elementary School,
Amityville, received certificates during the school's quarterly
awards ceremony. Students from the John F. Kennedy
Intermediate School, Deer Park, received awards certificates
from Town Clerk Carol Quirk at a school ceremony held on May
28, 2009.

" Atticle compiled and wriften by Mary Cascone, C.A., Direclor of
the Office of Historic Services, and Thomas B. Smith, Town
Historian, Town of Babylon.
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was no exception to the "Trolley Fever." The original plans of the
South Shore Traction Company were to build a 51-mile trolley
line from Manhattan, through Queens, Freeport, Babylon and
Patchogue, ending in Brookhaven. Aithough the South Shore
Traction Company operated several small trolley lines, those
full-scale plans never matenalized.

In 1909, the South Shora Traction Company successfully
electrified the existing trolley line between the Babylon Railroad
Station and the docks, and extended the line westward through
West Babylon, Lindenhurst and Copiague, to the Amityville
Ratlroad Station. The approximate route of the Babylon
Railroad, east to west, was this; starting from the Long island
Railroad Station in Babylon Village, the line proceeded west, on
what is now known as Trolley Line Road; continuing through
West Babylon, the line traveled along the south side of the Long
Island Railroad tracks, known as Railroad Avenue; in
Lindenhurst, where the road becomes Hoffman Avenue, the line
turned south from Hoffman Avenue along the approximate route
of East Gates Avenue crossing Broadway to West Gates
Avenue; entering Copiague from West Gates Avenue, the trolley
rolled westward down Scudder Avenue to Great Neck Road
where it tumed north and then quickly proceeded west on Oak
Street; following Oak Street to Amityville, the trolley line ended
at the Railroad Station.

Cn June 11, 1910, a reportedly rainy day, the new electrified
troliey line officially opened with five small troliey cars, each with
a capacilty of 28 passengers. The fare for stops at West
Babylon, Lindenhurst and Copiague was 5 cents, while the full
trip from Amityville to Babylon cost 10 cents. The full trip took
approximately 35 minutes and trolley cars operated at an
average of once per hour.

Stories of trolley mishaps abound. Henry Ellis Willmont, a former
trolley motorman, recalled that the trolley "used to jump off
{track] quite a bit and we'd have to run it back on.” Others have
described the need to distribute passenger weight evenly on the
trolley cars, otherwise the cars would tip. No reported deaths
were attributed to trolley accidents, but ane of the most
memorable stories of trolleys gone awry was dismaying to many
Babylon Village residents. On the southwest comer of Main
Street and Fire Island Avenue, there was once a large, ornate,
cast-iron drinking fountain for horses. The public fountain was
‘demolished by a trolley that had jumped the track. The fountain
had been a prominent feature in the heart of the bustling village.

In his article "Recollections of the Trolleys,” published in "A
Backward Glance" by the Amityville Historical Society, 1980,
Seath Purdy wrote: "Boys, who lived along the way on Oak Strest
in Copiague, were known ta throw a wire onto the overhead
lines causing a short and an unexpected stop of the car; a thnili
to the youngsters but an annoyance to the motorman and the
passengers.”

For ten years, the Babylon Railroad transported residents and
visitors across the southern part of the Town of Babylon.,
Despite its decadelong service, the trolley business was never a
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profit-making enterprise. On May 25, 1920, the operations of the
Babylon Railroad ended.

The Cross-Island Line

The history of the Cross-Island Line, which ran across Long
Island, from the Long Island Sound in Huntington to the Great
South Bay in Amityville, began with the Huntington Railroad
Company. In 1890, the Huntington Railroad Company
established a three-mile long horse-drawn trotley line between
Huntington Village and Halesite on the harbor.

The line was later purchased by the Long Island Railroad, which
electrified it in 1898. The electrified line between Halesite and
Huntington ran for ten years before it was extended 18.5 miles
to Amityville Village, following the approximate route of the
present day Route 110. The line traveled south through Melville,
stopping at both the Farmingdale Railroad Station and the
Amityville Railroad Station, to the dock in Amityville along the
Great South Bay.

The trolley tracks traveled under the LLong Island Railroad tracks
at the Huntington and Farmingdale Railroad Stations, but were
elevated over the tracks at Amityville. Car bams for the storage
of trolley cars were maintained at both ends of the line, in
Halesite and Amityville; and power substations were located at
the Railroad Stations in Huntington and Farmingdale.

With construction complete, the Cross-Island Line was officially
opened on August 25, 1909. The opening day in Amityville was
a festive occasion, with an automobile parade, fireworks and
other amusements. Maintaining an hourly schedule, a one-way
trip, from end to end, lasted 76 minutes. The rolling stock
consisted of six double-truck, semi-convertible cars and seven
single trucks, which provided more frequent service to local
railroad stations. The fare was 30 cents for the full trip, divided
into six 5-cent zones, each approximately three miles long: (1)
the Halesite terminal, (2) Huntington Station, (3) the DeForest
Farm at West Hills, (4) the Duryea Farm at Melviile, (5)
Farmingdale Station, and (6) the terminal at Amityville. A spur
track from Conklin Street to the Farmingdale Railroad Station
was created so that trolley passengers could make connections
with trains to and from Brooklyn and New York City.

" The following year, in 1910, passengers could connect from the
Cross-Island Line to the Babylon Railroad at the Amityville
Railroad Station. With so many intersecting trolley lines,
passengers had an increasing number of travel options. The
trolleys were a convenient source of transportation for
commuters, such as those who worked at the Fulton Truck
Assembly Plant in East Farmingdale. The line was also
frequented by baach goers fraveling between the refreshing
waters of the Long Island Sound and the Great South Bay.
Benny Cirincione, a Cross-Isiand motorman, is remembered as
serenading passengers with italian opera arias, while collecting
fares.

Comparable to the Babylon Railroad, the Cross-Island Line was
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